JESWANI & RATHORE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

408/C, NIRANJAN, 99, MARINE DRIVE, MUMBAI-400 002
TEL NO: +91 22 22816968/ 22834451/40066968
Email: jeswani.rathore@qgmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Cello Household Products Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of CELLO HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),

as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters for each matter.

There are no key audit matters identified in our audit.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exef/cf.lsﬁ_gfﬁ
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 6 o




¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind As specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended;
On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure “B” to this report;
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limit
prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not
applicable to a private limited company.
With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
(i) The Company did not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its
Financial Statements
(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, which could result in any material foreseeable losses.
(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2023.
(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have beeg;ﬁa’gngor loaned or invested (either from borrowed
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(v)

(vi)

or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv) (b) contain
any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1,
2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
2023.

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 104202W)

Khubilal G Rathore

(Partner)
M.No: 012807
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UDIN: 23012807BGXVHG8017

Place: Mumbai
Date: 31.07.2023



(iii)

(iv)

JESWANI & RATHORE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

408/C, NIRANJAN, 99, MARINE DRIVE, MUMBAI-400 002
TEL NO: +91 22 22816968/ 22834451/ 40066968
Email: jeswani.rathore@gmail.com

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Cello Household Products Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even
date)

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a phased program for physical verification of the PPE and for all locations. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable considering the size of the Company and nature of its PPE. Physical
verification of the assets has been carried out during the year pursuant to the programme in that respect and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not own any immovable
property.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

(ii) In respect of its inventories:

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were
appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, at
any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has during the year, not made any investments in, provided guarantee or security or granted any
loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records,
the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under section 185
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services
Thus reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable to Company.

(@) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities. There were no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) There are no dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any banks and related parties during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or government authority.

(c) The Company has utilised the money obtained by way of term loan during the year for the purposes for
which they were obtained.

(d) On an overall of examination of the financial statement of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short term basis have been used for long term purpose by the Company

(e) The Company has not taken loan from any entity or any person on account of or to meet the obligation of
its subsidiaries, joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised any funds during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associates Companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. W




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed
by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Based on our audit procedure performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
whistle blower complaints were received by the Company during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Note 38 of financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business

(b) we have considered the internal audit reports of the Company for the period under audit issued till date in
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xvii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly require nent.to report on Clause 3(xvii)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. 7 & RA,@,O
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(xvii)

(xwviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year and accordingly requirement to report on
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second
proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act .Hence reporting
under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 104202W)
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Khubilal G. Rathore
(Partner)
M.No: 012807

UDIN: 23012807BGXVHG8017
Place: Mumbai

Date: 31.07.2023



JESWANI & RATHORE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of Cello
Household Products Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Cello Household
Products Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Financial Statements based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to ﬁnangial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to thegg ?iﬁantl.:ial_ statements, assessing the risk that a material

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the: ?Eign _ajri‘d operating effectiveness of internal control based




on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company and;

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI.

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathore
(Partner)

M.No: 012807
UDIN: 23012807BGXVHG8017
Place: Mumbai

Date: 31.07.2023



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

ASSETS
1) Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment
b) Capital Work-In-Progress
c) Intangible Assets
d) Financial assets
i) Loans
ii) Other Financial Assets
e) Deferred tax Assets (net)
f) Income tax Assets (net)
g) Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

2) Current Assets
a) Inventories
b) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables
ii) Cash and cash equivalents
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
iv) Loans
v) Other financial assets
c) Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital
b) Other equity
Total Equity

Liabilities
1) Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Other financial liabilities
b) Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

2) Current Liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises
iii) Other financial liabilities
b) Provisions
c) Current tax liabilities (net)
d) Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of
the financial statements.
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3,716.86 2,930.94 3,093.32
= = 35.43

535 6.87 8.27

1.56 7.21 739
77.14 76.84 45.55
9.61 68.21 33.68
17.04 15.02 14.32
43.13 646.99 16.18
3,870.69 3,752.08 3,254.05
8,279.49 9,004.87 6,917.28
9,190.17 5,645.34 3,155.58
965.37 99.25 511.64

= - 15.12

831 15.15 28.42

4.06 3.84 10.55
498.50 480.97 234.43
18,945.90 15,249.42 10,873.02
22,816.59 19,001.50 14,127.07
93.00 100.00 100.00
11,111.81 5,113.60 226.93
11,204.81 5,213.60 326.93
0.03 0.03 0.03
16.36 135.03 123.31
16.39 135.06 123.34
9,414.85 11,549.55 6,937.47
1,040.77 674.84 380.94
749.44 1,181.31 1,443.30

- - 4,735.00

- 44.99 41.93

» 90.26 60.51
390.33 111.89 77.65
11,595.39 13,652.84 13,676.80
22,816.59 19,001.50 14,127.07

In terms of our report attached of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants R R\
(FRN- 104202W) . AN
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Khubilal G. Rathore
Partner (M. No.: 012807)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Cello Household Products Private Limited
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Pankaj G. Rathod GaurawP-T thod
Director Director
(DIN 00027572) (DIN 06800983)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Income

1. Revenue from operations
Il. | Other income
. | Total income (I+Il)

IV. | Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed

(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

(c) Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Semi Finished Goods and Stock-
in-trade

(d) Employee benefits expense

(e) Finance costs

(f) Depreciation and amortization expense

(g) Other expenses

Total Expenses

V. | Profit before tax (IlI-1V)

VI. | Tax expenses/(credit)

(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax charge / (credit)

Total Tax Expense

VII. | Profit after tax (V-VI)

VIIl. | Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
i) Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
ii) Income tax relating to above

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)

Basic (in X)

Diluted (in )

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part
of the financial statements.

24
25

26
27
28

29
30
31
32

33

34

1-47

34,834.82 27,386.16
10.05 29.84
34,844.87 27,416.00
18,118.23 15,167.94
1,061.29 1,059.81
406.40 (1,608.59)
2,460.33 2,158.85
1.18 6.44
782.85 815.35
2,879.68 2,619.41
25,709.96 20,219.21
9,134.91 7,196.79
2,263.38 1,756.37
59.04 (51.33)
2,322.42 1,705.04
6,812.49 5,491.75
(1.74) (9.90)
0.44 2.49
(1.30) (7.41)
6,811.19 5,484.34
698.67 549.18
698.67 549.18

In terms of our report attached of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants
(FRN- 104202W)

A

Khubilal G. Rathore RO~
Partner (M. No.: 012807)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Cello Household Products Private Limited

= 7

Pankaj G. Rathod Gaurav P. Rathod
Director Director
(DIN 00027572) (DIN 06800983)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 9,134.91 7,196.79
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and ammortisation expenses 782.85 815.35
Sundry credit balances written back (5.66) (4.46)
Sundry balances written off 4.06 47.48
Interest income (3.39) (3.13)
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.00) (2.08)
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,911.77 8,049.95
Movements in working capital: (2,777.82) (4,943.43)
(Increase) in Trade Receivables (3,548.84) (3,630.46)
(Increase) in Financial and Other assets (7.12) (395.04)
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 725.38 (1,568.58)
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables (60.28) 606.34
(Decrease)/Increase in Provisions (165.40) 3.95
Increase in Financial and Other liabilities 278.44 |- 40.36
Cash generated from operations 7,133.95 3,106.52
Income taxes paid (net) (2,355.67) (1,727.31)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 4,778.28 1,379.21
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including capital advances (970.51) (1,348.56)
Purchase of Intangible Assets - (0.24)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 9.87 10.28
Bank deposits created (net) 3.16 61.02
Payment on account of Slump sale - (4,751.29)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) (957.48) (6,028.79)
Cash flows from financing activities

Buyback of equity shares (including tax) (819.98) -
Loan repaid to banks - (6,887.92)
Loan taken from related parties - 11,519.29
Loan repaid to related parties (2,134.70) -
Payment to erstwhile partners (on account of business combination) - (394.18)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing activities (C) (2,954.68) 4,237.19
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 866.12 (412.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 99.25 511.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 965.37 99.25
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the Cash flow Statement

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 965.37 99.25
Balance as per statement of cash flows 965.37 99.25

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants

w

Khubilal G. Rathare
Partner (M. No.: 012807)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Cello Household Products Private Limited

ol Z

Pankaj G. Rathod Gaura?’P. Rathod
Director Director
(DIN 00027572) (DIN 06800983)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

a)

sha ca|

Balance as at April 1, 2022

"~ Changes In equity

Restated balance at

equ

Balance as at March

100.00

share capital due to share capital during
il April 1, 2022 the rerad 31,2023
- 100.00 -7.00 93.00

Changes In equity

Changes in equity

Balance as at April 1, 2021 share capital due to R"'::’A‘:]:’:m“ share capital during B"’“;';o';""d'
prior period errors 4 the period .
100.00 : 100.00 : 100.00

nm asat April 01, :

w3.17)]

226.93 |

219.95 20.15
Profit for the year 5,491.76 . = : 5,491.76
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - - (7.41) (7.41)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 5,711.71 - (13.17) 12.74 5,711.28
Assumed on account of business combination (Refer note 41) - - (203.50) - (203.50)
Profit distributed to partners (Refer note 41) (394.18) - - - (394.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,317.52 - (216.67) 12.74 5,113.60
Profit for the year 6,812.49 - - - 6,812.49
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - . (1.30) (1.30]
Total Comprehensive income for the year 12,130.01 - (216.67) 11.44 11,924.79
Buy-back of shares (Refer note 17.3) (812.98) 7.00 - - (805.98)
Capital redemption reserve on account of buy-back of shares (Refer note
17.3 (7.00) . < = (7.00)}
Balance as at March 31, 2023 11,310.03 7.00 (216.67) 11.44 11,111.81

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants
(FRN- 104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathore
Partner (M. No.: 012807)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Cello Household Products Private Limited

L=

Pankaj G. Rathod
Director
(DIN 00027572)

Mumbai - July 31, 2023

Z%

Director
(DIN 06800983)



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

1. Corporate Information

Cello Household Products Private Limited ('The Company') was incorporated on February 12, 2021 with
Company Identification No: U25209MH2021PTC355178. The registered office of the Company is located
at 3" Floor, B Wing, Cello House, Corporate avenue, Sonawala road, Goregaon east, Mumbai — 400063
Maharashtra. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and dealing in “Consumer
Products” namely houseware, insulated ware, cleaning products and its allieds.

2. Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies
2.1. Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with
the requirements of previous GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition
to Ind AS is April 01, 2021.

b) Business combinations

Business combinations (other than common control transactions) are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Company,
liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Company in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised
in the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

Judgement is applied in determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred
from one party to another.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value, except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ (“Ind AS 12”)
and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (“Ind AS 19”) respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognizing a gain in respect thereof, the Company determines
where there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a
bargain purchase. Thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are
identified in that reassessment. The Company then reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts
that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this
reassessment and review, the Company recognizes it in other comprehensive income and accumulates
the same in equity as capital reserve. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Company recognizes the gain, after
reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve.

Transaction costs that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination such as, finder’s
fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are expensed as incurred.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to Statement
of profit and loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed-off.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination,
are considered as common control business combinations. Such business combinations involving entities
or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interests method.

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities or businesses are reflected at their carrying amounts.
No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only
adjustments that are made are to harmonize accounting policies. The financial information in the financial
statements in respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred
from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of
the combination. The identity of the reserves appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
preserved and appears in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they
appeared in the financial statements of the transferor.

The differences, if any, between the amount of consideration paid or payable in cash or and the amount
of share capital / partners’ capital of the transferor and further adjusted for harmonization of the
accounting policies, has been transferred to ‘Capital reserve on business combination under common
control’ and presented separately from other capital reserves.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company acquired businesses from entities which
were ultimately controlled by the same parties both before and after the business combination. These
transactions were in the nature of acquisition of the assets and liabilities under a slump sale arrangement.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

Pursuant to the requirements of Appendix C of the Ind AS 103, these business combinations under
common control are accounted for using the pooling of interest method as explained above. The details
of the business combinations, the carrying value of the assets, liabilities and reserves acquired and
harmonized as per the revised accounting policies, and the resultant capital reserve are given in note 41.

c) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
I. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
IIl.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
ll.  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
IV. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

I.  Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
IIl.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
Il Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
V. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Advance tax paid is
classified as non-current assets.

d) Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act 2013. Based on the
nature of services and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

2.2. Basis of measurement
a) Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention, except for
certain assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS. Fair value
measurements are categorized as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety:

I.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at measurement date;
Il.  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
ll.  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no transfers between
the levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change warranting such transfer.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Financial instruments
b) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these Financial Statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

i.  Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
ii.  Impairment test of non-financial assets
iii.  Recognition of deferred tax assets
iv.  Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies
v.  Fair value of financial instruments
vi.  Impairment of financial assets
vii.  Measurement of defined benefit obligations
viii.  Revenue recognition




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

2.3. Significant accounting policies

a) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Recognition and measurement:

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in Statement
of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
reporting year in which they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its

property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2021 (transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

b)

Depreciation:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, is provided under the written down value method in
the manner prescribed under Schedule 1l of the Act.

For certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment, the Company depreciates over estimated useful
life which are different from the useful lives prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
which is based upon technical assessment made by the technical expert and management estimate.
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The estimated useful lives, residual values,
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis

Category of property, plant | Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (Years)
and equipment

Electric Installations 10 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Plant and machinery 15 Years
Office equipments 5 Years
Vehicle 8 Years
Moulds 8 Years
Computers 3 Years
Solar Power Plant (Plant and | 20 Years
machinery)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed of during the year, is
provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / deletion.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances :

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the end of the reporting period, is shown as capital
work in progress.

Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at end of each reporting period are
disclosed as other non-current assets.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding eligible development costs are not capitalized and the
related expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are ¥ in lakhs unless otherwise stated

d)

Transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2021 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Amortization:

Amortisation is recognised on a written down value basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives as mentioned below :

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Designs and Patents 10 Years

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an Impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
and to the extent that the impairment loss is greater than the related revaluation surplus, the excess
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to the extent that it
eliminates the impairment loss which has been recognised for the asset in prior years. Any increase
in excess of this amount is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

e)

Gooduwill is tested for impairment, at least annually and whenever circumstances indicate that it may
be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, the Goodwill is allocated to a CGU or Company
of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business combination in
which the said Goodwill arose.

Leases:
As a Lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:
I.  the contact involves the use of an identified asset
Il.  the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and
lll.  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

l. - fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

Il.  variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

I the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

IV.  the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

V.  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.
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The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

I.  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Il.  the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which
case a revised discount rate is used).

lll.  alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet. The right-of-use
assets are initially recognised at cost which comprises of the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for
costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

As a Lessor:

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases a either an operating lease
or a finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is
recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return
on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it
accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease
classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.
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f)

g)

h)

The Company applied Ind AS 116 “Leases” to all lease contracts, except those which are exempted
under this standard, using the modified retrospective approach, on the date of initial application.

Following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application (on a lease-by-lease
basis):

1. Applied the exemption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application

2. Used hindsight, such as in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the First In First Out
method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash at banks,
cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative
contracts.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets other than those measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
e Amortised cost,
¢ Fair value through profit (FVTPL)
* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.
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Amortised cost:
A financial instrument is measured at the Amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial
position) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at Amortised
cost and debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Company uses historical default rates to
determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analyzed. In
respect of other financial assets, the loss allowance is measured at 12-month ECL only if there is no
significant deterioration in the credit risk since initial recognition of the asset or asset is determined
to have a low credit risk at the reporting date.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement:

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective
financial liabilities.
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Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):
A financial liability is classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if it is classified as held-
for trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured

at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are
subsequently measured at Amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The Amortisation done using the EIR method is included as finance
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance
Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

A provision is recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, but
their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised till the realization of
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)

the income is virtually certain. However, the same are disclosed in the Financial Statements where
an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Revenue recognition
Sale of goods and Services

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of Consumer Products comprising of
manufacturing and dealing in houseware, insulated ware, cleaning products and its allieds.

The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the
provisions of contract with the customer. This is achieved when control of the product has been
transferred to the customer, which is generally determined when title, ownership, risk of
obsolescence and loss pass to the customer and the Company has the present right to payment, all
of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product.

The Company considers shipping and handling activities as costs to fulfil the promise to transfer the
related products and the customer payments for shipping and handling costs are recorded as a
component of revenue. In certain customer contracts, shipping and handling services are treated as
a distinct separate performance obligation and the Company recognises revenue for such services
when the performance obligation is completed.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The
transaction price is based upon the amount the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring of promised goods and services to the customer after deducting incentive programs,
included but not limited to discounts, volume rebates etc.

For incentives offered to customers, the Company makes estimates related to customer
performance and sales volume to determine the total amounts earned and to be recorded as
deductions. The estimate is made in such a manner, which ensures that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The actual
amounts may differ from these estimates and are accounted for prospectively.

No element of significant financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term,
which is consistent with market practice.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized over the time by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligations at the reporting period.

Contract balances
Trade receivables:

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract liabilities:
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
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k)

N

m)

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other Income

Incentives on exports and other Government incentives

Incentives on exports and other Government incentives related to operations are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company's
right to receive payment is established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.
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n)

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex gratia including non-monetary benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss as the related service is provided.

Certain employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences based on statutory
provisions. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services that increases this entitlement.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Company pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company
makes contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State Insurance. Contribution paid or payable in
respect of defined contribution plan is recognised as an expense in the year in which services are
rendered by the employee.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The liability is recognised in the
Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the
balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized
actuarial gain losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation are calculated at balance
sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCl).

Taxation

Income tax expense /income comprises current tax expense /income and deferred tax expense
/income. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. In which case, the tax is also recognised directly
in equity or other comprehensive income, respectively.

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured
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p)

at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the applicable
tax rates and tax laws.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if,
* the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

* intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amount considered for tax purpose.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit
of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized such reductions are reversed when it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
recovered.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

* the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

* the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Dividend

The Company recognizes a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the
reporting year, when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion
of the Company on or before the end of the reporting year.
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q) Earnings per share:

r

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders' and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

I Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

IIl.  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.
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s) Government Grant:

t)

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented
within other operating income. Government grant related to assets are presented by deducting the
grant from the carrying amount of the asset.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) for the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. Cash flows for the year are classified by operating, investing and financing
activities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, applicable from April 1, 2023 as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose the material accounting policies rather than
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information,
is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general
purpose financial statements

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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Ml

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition
of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop
accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured
in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.

The Company is assessing the impact of these changes and will accordingly incorporate the same
in the financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2024.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as at April 1, 2021 (the transition
date) by recognizing, derecognizing or reclassifying items of assets and liabilities from previous GAAP
(Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016) to Ind AS as per the requirements set out by Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of
recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the certain exception and certain
optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below.

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets recognised as of the transition date measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the transition date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as
permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially
recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has
not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to
Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as
permitted by Ind AS 101.

Leases

The Company has applied paragraphs 9-11 of Ind AS 116 to determine whether an arrangement
existing at the transition date contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that
date.
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Following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application (on a lease-by-lease
basis):

1. Applied the exemption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application

2. Used hindsight, such as in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.
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4 Pro

I.deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2021 125.14 25.85 1,762.91 911 120.32 1,044.93 5.07 3,093.32
Additions 13.31 379 333.42 10.51 14.49 277.48 6.48 659.47
Disposals - - |0.20) - (O.DS!L (10.35) & (10.62)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 138.44 29.64 2,096.13 19.61 134.73 1,312.06 11.55 3,742.17
Additions 9.85 g 1,168.16 179 39.77 350.33 3.07 1,576.13
Disposals - - (3.13) (0.05) (21.08 (3.58) F (27.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 148.29 32.81 3,261.16 2135 153.42 1,658.81 14.62 5,290.47
Il. Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2021 - - - - - - - -
Depreciation expense for the year 63.32 11.27 370.05 8.67 59.99 295.41 4.92 813.63
Disposals - - (0.01) - - (2.40) - (2.41)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 63.32 11.27 370.04 8.67 59.99 293.01 4.92 811.23
Depreciation expense for the year 23.14 6.12 402,78 5.20 27.67 312.46 3.95 781.33
Disposals - - {0.20) (0.03) (17.29) (1.43) - (18.96)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 86.46 17.39 772.62 13.84 70.37 604.04 8.87 1,573.60
Il Net carrying amount (I-11)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 61.83 15.42 2,488.54 7.51 83.05 1,054.77 5.75 3,716.86
Balance as at March 31, 2022 75.12 18.37 1,726.09 10.94 74.74 1,019.05 6.63 2,930.94
Balance as at April 1, 2021 125.14 25.85 1,762.91 9.11 120.32 1,044.93 5.07 3,093.32

4.1 There are no impairment losses recognised during each reporting year.

4.2 The Company has not revalued its property,

applicable.

4.3 Refer note 2.3 (a), 3(i) and note 44 for first time adoption options availed by the Company on the transition to Ind AS,

5 Capital work-i

Balance as at April 1, 2021
Additions

Transfers to PPE

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Additions
Deductions/adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023

5.2 Capital work-in-progress consists projects which are for period less than one year.

There are no projects as on each reporting date where activity had been suspended. Also,
original plan or where completion is overdue.

plant and equipment as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule Il disclosure requirements with respect to fair value details is not

there are no projects as on the reporting periods which has exceeded cost as compared to its
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6 Intangible assets

ost/deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2021 8.27
Additions 0.32
Balance as at March 31, 2022 8.59
Additions -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 8.59

Il. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 -

Amortisation expense for the year 1.72
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1.72
Amortisation expense for the year 1.52
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.24
Ill. Net carrying amount (I-11)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 535
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6.87
Balance as at April 1, 2021 8.27

6.1 The Company has not revalued its intangible assets as on each reporting year
and therefore Schedule Il disclosure requirements with respect to fair value
details is not applicable.

6.2 Refer note 2.3 (a), 3(i) and note 44 for first time adoption options availed by
the Company on the transition to Ind AS.
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7 Loans

Non current- unsecu, oonse u lwlse .. .
Loans to employees
Total

Current- unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Loans to employees 8.31 15.15 28.42
Total 8.31 15.15 28.42

7.1 Details of fair value of the loans carried at amortised cost is disclosed in note 40,

8 rﬁnam:illm

unsemml. good unless stated

Long term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period more than

12 months from balance sheet date (Refer note 8.1) 5.74 5.45 42.54
Security deposits 71.40 71.39 3.01
Total 77.14 76.84 45.55
Current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Long term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period less than

12 months from balance sheet date (Refer note 8.2) 0.46 0.54 6.23
Security deposits 3.60 3.30 4.12
Other receivables = = 0.20
Total 4.06 3.84 10.55

8.1 Fixed deposits amounting to % 5 lakhs as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: X 5 lakhs , April 1, 2021: % 5 lakhs) are held as lien with Electricity

department.

8.2 Fixed deposits amounting to % 0.45 lakhs as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Nil » April 1, 2021: Nil) is given to Member Secretary PDA,

Daman.

9 Deferred Tax Asset (net)

33.68

51.33 |

Advance tax (net of provisions)
Total

17.04

15.02

14.32

17.04

15.02

Advance tax (net of provisions) as at March 31,2023 includes % 1.63 lakhs being excess tax paid on buy-back of shares.

11 rlssais :

Non-current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

1a32]

Balances with government authorities (other than income taxes) 227 2.27 8.77
Prepaid expenses L7s - -

| Capital advances 39.11 644,72 7.41
Total 43.13 646.99 16.18
Current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Advances to suppliers 489.45 454.24 21132
Prepaid expenses 9.05 26.73 2311
Total 498.50 480.97 234.43

——— —
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12 Inventories _

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Raw materials 2,828.22 3,144.01 2,721.51
Packing materials 492.78 495.97 439.47
Semi-finished goods 525.38 551.05 390.56
Finished goods 4,070.46 4,533.48 3,184.42
Traded goods 362.65 280.36 181.32
Total 8,279.49 9,004.87 6,917.28

12.1 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was X 19585.92 lakhs (March 31, 2022: X 14619.16 lakhs). The Company has
no write-down of inventory to net realisable value as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and April 01, 2021.

12.2 Details of g oods--transi included in Inventories above _

Raw materials ' 244.25 o >

Finished goods - - -
Total 244.25 - »

12.3 The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 2.3 ( f ) of significant accounting policies.

13 Trade relvales

Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 9.190.17 5,645.34 3,155.58
Unsecured, credit impaired - - -
Total 9,190.17 5,645.34 3,155.58

13.1 The average credit period on sales of goods is 90 days.

13.2 Details of trade receivables from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or

Trad receivables from
Holding Company 9,133.13 5,308.02 2,421.56
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence 39.90 337.18 698.87

13.3 Trade receivables from related parties are disclosed separately under note 38.
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Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

14 Ca and cash equivalents _

- In Current accounts
Total

964.50 97.93 509.66
965.37 99.25 511.64

than twelve months (Refer note 15.1)
Total

Bank deposits with iginal matu ri of more tathr months but less

15.12

15.12

15.1 Fixed deposits are held as lien with electricity department.
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Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

7.00]

Capital reserve on business combination under common control (Refer note (216.67) (216.67)

41)
Retained earnings 11,310.04 531753

11.44 12.74 :
11,111.81 5,113.60 226.93 |

ar 7.00 -
In accordance with Section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013, as at March 31, 2023, the Company has created a capital redemption reserve equal to
the nominal value of shares bought back as an appropriation from Retained earnings.

Balance at beginning of the year (netof tax) (216.67)
Add: Adjustment for change in Net asstes and Reserve not transferred (net of

(216. Sﬂ (216.67,
Capital reserve represents represents difference between the net assets acquired in business combination under common control and the
consideration paid / payable, in accordance with IND AS 103 Appendix C.

17.3 Retained earni

Balance at beginning of the year
Less: Utilised towards buy-back of shares

Less: Utilised towards creation of capital redemption reserve on buy-back of
shares (Refer note 17.1) (7.00)

Add: Profit for the year 6,812.49 5,491.75
: - (394.18)
11,310.04 5,317.53

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions to
shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

Balance at beginning of the year i 20.15
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (1.74) (9.90)
0.44 2.49

11.44 12.74

Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

18 Provisions _

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer note 37) 16.36 135.03 123.31
Total 16.36 135.03 123.31
———— — =
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer note 37) - 44.99 41,93
Total - 44.99 41.93

19 unl rl gs

. bank

Bank overdraft (Refer note 19.1) - - 6,887.92
Unsecured - at amortised cost

Loan from related parties (Refer note 19.2 and 38) 9,414.85 11,549.55 49.55
Total 9,414.85 11,549.55 6,937.47

19.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements
at April 01, 2021

HDFC Bank Limited 6,887.92 |Payable on demand
Rate of interest: FDR rate + 100 bps per annum
Security:

1. Fixed deposits owned by shareholders of Company of Rs. 7,000 Lakhs

19.2 Loan from related parties is interest free and repayable on demand.



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

20 Trd es

abl

(a) Total outstanding dues of small and micro enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small and micro
enterprises

Total

749.44

674.84

1,181.31

380,94 |

1,443.30

1,790.21

1,856.15

1,824.24

20.1 The average credit period on purchases is 45 days.

20.2 For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes, refer note 39.

20.3 Trade payables from related parties are disclosed separately under note 38.

20.4 Disclosures as required under the Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act):
The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon

remaining unpaid as at year end

(b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at period year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

(c) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the

vear
(d) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered

under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

(e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED
Act, for payments already made
(f) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods

() Princlpal mout plirseistee under thMS A and

0.91

1,039.86 |
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Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

21 Other financial liabilities

Non-r.nt: Findal Iltlest mortlsed cost

Security deposit payable 0.03 0.03 0.03
Total . 0.03 0.03 0.03
Current:
Purchase consideration payable to related parties towards Business
acquisitions (Refer Note 41) - - 4,735.00
- - 4,735.00

21.1 Refer note 39 on financial instruments.

22 Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax

Income tax payable (net of advance tax)
Total

23 Other rrnt liabilities

Statutory remittances 90.32

Advance from customer ©2.02 2257 4.17
Government subsidy (Refer note 25.1) - - 24.63
Total 390.33 111.89 77.65

24 Revenue from operations

27,234.71 |

Sals of products

34,574.23
Sales of services - 17.95
Other operating income
- Scrap Sales 260.59 133.50
Total 34,834.82 27,386.16

24.1 The Company presently recognises its revenue from contract with customers for the transfer of goods and services. This
is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each reportable segment under Ind AS 108.

27,234.71

transfer at a point in time 34,574.23 1
Service transfer at a point in time - 17.95
Total 34,574.23 27,252.66

24.2 Contract balances
Refer details of trade receivables in note 13 and contract liabilities (advance from customer) in note 23.

24.3 The Company receives payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules. Accounts receivable are
recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

24.4 Reconciliation of revenue recog Ised in th

nd Loss with the contracted price:

Contracted price with the customers
Less: Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions

Revenue from contracts with customers (As per the Statement of Profit
and Loss)

36,117.75

27,294.49
-1,543.52 -41.83

34,574.23 27,252.66

nsatisfied during the year ended March 31, 2023

24.5 There are no performance obligations that are unsatisfied @
and year ended March 31, 2022. (



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

25 Other income _

lntt income onﬂnclal sured at cost

- On deposits 3.39 3.13
3.39 3.13

Other non-operating income
- Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 1.00 2.08
- Sundry balances written back 5.66 4.46
- Subsidy received - 20.17
6.66 26.71
Total 10.05 29.84

=

25.1 Cello Plastotech (partnership firm) entered into an MOU with Ozone Cell, MoEF&CC for conversion from HCFC141b to Ecomate
technology. In accordance with the MOU, the entity was entitled to receive subsidy consequent to fulfillment of the conditions stated
therein. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has received subsidy amounting to X 30.25 lakhs from the Ozone Cell,
MoEF&CC. The grant is recognised as an adjustment to the capital expenditure & relevant expenses charged to the statement of profit &
loss and the remaining amount of subsidy has been recognized as an income.

26 Cost of materialsns

Openg stock (st received on aunt of conversion) - raw materials 3,144.01 2,721.51

Opening stock (stock received on account of conversion) - packing materials 495.97 439.47
Add - Purchases - raw materials 14,919.17 13,123.98
Add - Purchases - packing materials 2,880.08 2,522.96
Less - Closing stock- raw materials (2,828.22) (3,144.01)
Less - Closing stock- packing materials (492.78) (495.97)
Total 18,118.23 15,167.94

27 Purchases of stoch-ln—u

Stock-in-trade ; s = g i ' e 1,059.81
1,059.81

28 Change . d goods, semi finished goods and stock-in-trade
Finished goods 4,533.48 3,184.42
Semi-finished goods 551.05 390.56
Traded goods 280.36 181.32
5,364.89 3,756.30
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 4,070.46 4,533.48
Semi-finished goods 525.38 551.05
Traded goods 362.65 280.36
4,958.49 5,364.89
Total changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and stock-in-
trade 406.40 {1,608.59)
29 Emplo

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer note 37)
Gratuity (Refer note 37)
Staff welfare expenses

35.33 59.25
2,460.33 2,158.85

Interest cost - on financial liabilities at amortised cost

- Bank overdraft - 6.15
Interest on delayed payment of taxes/others 1.18 0.29
Total 1.18 6.44

31 Depreciation and amortisation .

Deaticm of proerty, plant ad equipmt (Refer note 4) 781.33 813.63
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 6) 1.52 1.72

Total 782.85 815.35




32 ar expens

Aveisements

15.50 11.40
Books and periodicals 0.16 017
Bank charges 0.08 0.53
Carriage outward 43.64 45.08
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 32.2) 73.89 -
Insurance 68.45 61.42
Labour/jobwork charges 646.40 448.45
Legal and professional charges 36.28 39.28
Membership and subscription 0.05 0.18
Payment to auditors (refer note 32.1) 20.50 17.20
Postage and telegram expenses 12.44 10.75
Power and water charges 757.46 568.10
Printing and stationery 7.83 8.41
Rates and taxes 4.19 3.94
Rent 667.50 606.32
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 50.66 318.29
- Plant and machinery 186.29 174.11
- Others 64.15 93.74
Royalty 90.97 65.21
Sales commission 4,52 5.80
Sales promotion and conference 1.30 1:23
Security charges 35.67 36.58
Software charges 11.12 9.55
Stores and consumables 36.76 22.80
Sundry debtors balances writen off 4.06 47.48
Telephone and communication charges 4.94 4.46
Travel and conveyance 26.24 11.86
Miscellaneous expenses 8.63 7.09
Total 2,879.68 2,619.41

32.1 Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket ex

enses \n

As Auditor:
- Statutory audit
- Tax audit
- Other matters
Total

10.00 9.20
10.00 7.50

0.50 0.50
20.50 17.20




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

: Amount reqired to e snt b e CQmpn uring thyr(nder Secti 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013)
Amount of expenditure incurred

H(l) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

Amount not spend during the year on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(i) On purposes other than (i) above

-

Amount of shortfall for the year

Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year
Reason for shortfall

Amount yet to be spent/paid

8|Details of Related party transactions
Badamia Charitable Trust

Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligations

10| Nature of CSR activities:

71.02

73.89

Not applicable

71.50

Education, Training to
promote nationally
recognized sports

33 Current tax and deferred tax

33.1 Income tax expe nse recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Nt applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Current tax:

In respect of current year 2,277.00 1,765.00

Short provision of tax relating to earlier years (13.62) (8.63)]
Total current tax expense 2,263.38 1,756.37
Deferred tax expense/ (credit)

In respect of current year 59.04 (51.33)
Total deferred tax (credit) 59.04 (51.33
Total income tax expense recognised in the reporting year 2,322.42 1,705.04

comprehensive Incom

Income tax r

rred tax (liabilities)/asse
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans
Total

0.44

2.49

0.44

2.49
- =3

9,134.91
25.17% 25.17%
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate # 2,299.10 1,811.29
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income
18.89 0.13
Effect of adoption of Ind AS - -141.06
Income tax related earlier year (13.62) (8.63)
Others 18.05 43.31
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 2,322.42 1,705.04

's domestic tax rate

7,196.79 |

# The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate plus surcharge (as applicable) on corporate tax, education cess

and secondary and higher education cess on corporate tax, payable by corpofate
1961.
In pursuance of Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announcefl
Ordinance, 2019, the Company has opted for irrevocable option of shif

33.4 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded iW*8
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Ag
of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

entities in India on taxable profits under Income Tax Act,

Ints that has been surrendered or disclosed as
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions



Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

34 Earnings per eg share

(a) Profit for the year 6,812.49 5,491.75
(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose of basic 9,75,068 10,00,000
earnings per share (numbers)
(c) Effect of potential ordinary shares (numbers) v -
(d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in computing diluted earnings per 9,75,068 10,00,000
share [(b) + (c)] (numbers)
(e) Earnings per share on profit for the year (Face Value % 100/- per share)
- Basic [(a)/(b)] (%) 698.67 549.18
— Diluted [(a)/(d)] (%) 698.67 549.18 |

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments
There are no contingent liabilities for the as at March 31, 2023, as at March 31, 2022 and as at April 1, 2021,

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (Net of Advances)

35.1 The Company did not expect any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision was made in respect thereof,

36 Segment information

36.1 The Company has identified one operating segment viz, “Consumer Products” which is consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board of
Directors, who has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segment of the Company.

36.2 Geographical information
The Company presently caters to only domestic market i.e., India and hence there is no revenue from external customers outside India nor any of its non-
current asset is located outside India.

36.3 Information about major customers
Included in revenue arising from direct sales of trading goods of % 32533.14 Lakhs (year ended March 31, 2022: % 24,288.01 Lakhs) which arose from sales
to its 1 (previous year: 1) major customers which accounts for 94.1 percent (year ended March 31, 2022: 89.12 percent) of the total revenue from
operations.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

37 Employee benefit plans

37.1 Defined contribution plans:
The Company participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation to
provident fund represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified by the rules of provident fund. The only
amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not paid until after the end of the reporting period.

(a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund administered and managed by
Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by the GOl beyond its monthly contributions which are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from

tha Camnanu
Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year under employee benefits expense, are as under:

i) Employer's contribution to provident fund and pension

ii) Employer's contribution to labour fund 0.02
iii) Employer's contribution to state insurance corporation 0.69
iv) Employer's contribution to national pension scheme 12.28
v) Employer's contribution to super annuation fund 3.00
Total 103.94
(b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a funded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days
salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the
liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. The Company makes annual contributions (from year ended March 31,
2023 onwards) to eratuitv fund managed hv Kntak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March 31, 2023 by an
independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using
the projected unit credit method.

(A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
(1) Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.
(2) Interest rate risk:
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount
rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.
(3) Investment risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a

relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.
(4) Mortality risk:

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

i : 20
1. Discount rate 7.10% 5.40%
(Plastotech-5.15%)

2. Salary escalation

- Corporate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
- Worker 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
- Sales 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

3. Expected return of Assets - 7.10% 0.00% 0.00%

4, Rate of employee turnover

- Corporate 12.00% 12.00% 12.00%
- Worker 39.00% 39.00% 39.00%
- Sales 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%

5. Mortality rate

India assured lives mortality (2012-14) ult.

N accdT/



24.18| 1354
8.51 3.36
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in statement of profit or loss 32.69 16.90

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(D) Expe eCOg IzedintheOtherCumrehelnmm

Actuarial (Ins)lls on obligation for the yr
- Due to changes in financial assumptions

- Due to experience adjustment 13.28 127
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (0.00) -
Net expense for the period recognized in OCI 1.74 9.90

(E) Amount recognised in the balance sheet _

Present value of funded defined benefit obligaton i 196.13

Fair value of plan assets (179.77) -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 16.36 180.02 165.24

(G) Net asse ) gnised in the balance sheet

Long t pon

Short term provision - 44.99 41.93
Total 16.36 180.02 165.24 |

(H) meﬂts in the present value of deﬂn net obligation are as folows "

Opening defined benefit obligation 180.02

Current service cost 2418 X
Interest cost 8.51 3.36
Actuarial (gains)/losses ‘1.74
Benefits paid from the fund (18.32)
Closing defined benefit obligation 196.13

(1) Movements in the fair value of the pla

Contributions by the Employer
Remeasurement (gains)/losses .
Actual benefits paid* (18.32) -
Closing fair value of plan assets 179.77 -
*Actual Benefit Paid of X 18.32 Lakhs is paid directly by the enterprise and not through the Fund and hence we have added the same amount to Actual
Enterprise's Contributions and benefit paid.

(J) Description of Plan Assets




Year 6 to year 10 cashflow

(L) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the lied
assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and
the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined
Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from

nroviniic vasr

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Rate of discounting .

Impact of +0.5% change 193.04 176.70
(% change) (1.57%) (1.84%)
Impact of -0.5% change 199.35 183.49
(% change) 1.64% 1.93%
Rate of salary increase

Impact of +0.5% change 199.16 183.13
(% change) 1.55% 1.73%
Impact of -0.5% change 192.95 176.95
(% change) (1.62%) (1.70%)

(M) Other disclosures
The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2023 is 3.01 years (as at March 31, 2022: 3 years).
The Company’s best estimate of the contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the next year is ® 16.35 lakhs (As on March 31, 2022: Nil)




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

38 Related party disclosures

38.1 D

Holding Company Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited)

Key management personnel

- Director Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod

- Director Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod

- Director Gaurav Pradeep Rathod
Relatives of key management personnel (where transactions have taken place) Pampuben Ghisulal Rathod

Sangeeta Pradeep Rathod

Babita Pankaj Rathod

Ruchi Gaurav Rathod

Enterprises over which the KMP have Significant Influence (where transactions have  |Cello Home Products

taken place) Cello International Private Limited (now Cello Pens and stationery Private
Limited) '

Cello Pens and Stationery Private Limited
Wim Plast Limited

Cello Houseware

Cello Plast

Cello Plastic Industrial Works

Cello Marketing

Cello Industries Private Limited

Vardhaman Realtors

Cello Industries

Cello Houseware Private Limited

Unomax Pens and Stationery Private Limited
Unomax Stationery Private Limited

Unomax Sales & Marketing Private Limited
Unomax Writing Instruments Private Limited
Millennium Houseware

Cello Plastotech

Cello Household Appliances Private Limited
Cello Entrade

Badamia Charitable Trust

Umracben Family trust




38.2 Transactions during the year with related parties

Sales.
Holding company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited)

n nagerial personnel
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod

1l {Relatives of key managerial personnel
Pampuben Ghisulal Rathod

IV|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence

Cello Houseware Private Limited

Cello Industries

Cello Industries Private Limited

Cello International Private Limited (now Cello Pens and stationery Private Limited)
Cello Marketing

Cello Plast

Unomax Pens & Stationery Private Limited
Unomax Sales & Marketing Private Limited
Unomax Stationery Private Limited

Unomax Writing Instruments Private Limited
Wim Plast Limited

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Holding company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited)

Il|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence

Cello Houseware Private Limited
Wim Plast Limited

Purchases

Holding company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited)

Il|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Houseware Private Limited

Cello Industries

Cello Industries Private Limited

Cello Plast

Unomax Pens & Stationery Private Limited

Unomax Sales & Marketing Private Limited

Unomax Stationery Private Limited

Wim Plast Limited

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Holding company

Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited)

I1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Houseware

Cello Houseware Private Limited

Wim Plast Limited

Millenium Houseware

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (C)

Total (D)

Total (A+B+C+D)

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

32,533.14 24,288.01
32,533.14 24,288.01
0.08 .
0.08 5
1.26 =
1.26 =
120.50 47.37
- 7.05
574.70 112.55
157.19 1,531.20
0.03 34.12
369.86
177.38 265.56
63.30 2
320.98 :
24.00 :
0.13 45.92
1,438.22 2,413.63
33,972.70 26,701.64
313 .
3.13 ”
3.72 6.40
. 2.35
3.72 8.75
6.84 8.75
218.32 284.80
218.32 284.80
62.86 65.65
- 1.72
18.83 #
5 14.56
83.51 235.11
258.79 :
48.17 o
9.15 141.08
481.31 458.13
699.62 742.93
- 1.21
- 1.21
5 3.27
5.49 1.25
4.25 21.87
« 2.80
9.74 29.19
9.74 30.41




Purchase of business
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence

Cello Plastotech . 4,735.00
Total - 4,735.00
Rent paid
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Home Products 410.76 400.09
Cello Household Appliances Private Limited 211.68 171.00
Vardhaman Realtors 33.50 24.00
Total 655.94 595.09
Royalty
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Plastic Industrial Works 90.97 65.21
Total 90.97 65.21
Reimbursement of expenses
I|Holding company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 0.20 0.04
Total (A) 0.20 0.04
11|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Houseware Private Limited 1.95 235
Cello Industries - 0.15
Cello Industries Private Limited 0.23 -
Cello Plast - 0.01
Wim Plast Limited 28.12 7.52
Total (B) 30.30 10.03
Total (A+B) 30.50 10.07
Labour charges
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Plastotech - 5.43
Unomax Stationery Private Limited 4.39 -
Unomax Pens & Stationery Private Limited 2.95 13.89
Total 7.34 19.33
Loans received
||Key managerial personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod - 2,520.00
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod - 7,304.00
Total (A) - 9,824.00
11| Relatives of key managerial personnel
Babita Pankaj Rathod - 1,676.00
Total (B) - 1,676.00
Total (A+B) - 11,500.00
Loans repaid
||Key managerial personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod 1,782.70 -
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod 352.00 -
Total 2,134.70 -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Badamia Charitable Trust 71.50 -
Total 71.50 -
Expenses Reimbursed
I|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Vardhman Realtors - 0.12
Total - 0.12
Purchase consideration paid for business combination under common control
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Plastotech i 4,735.00
Total - 4,735.00
Retained earnings distributed to partners/erstwhile owners
||Key Management Personnel
Pradeep Rathod - 63.07
Pankaj Rathod - 126.14
Gaurav Rathod - 110.38
Total (A) - 299.59
11| Relatives of key management personnel
Sangeeta Pradeep Rathod t\ - 31.54
Babita Pankaj Rathod i - 47.30
Ruchi Gaurav Rathod )] . 15.77
7 /Motal (B) - 94.61
//
——— Total (A+B) « | 394,20

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and

related party transactions are reviewed and approved by the Board of directors.

on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. All the



Receivables

Holding company

Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 9,133.13 5,308.02 2,421.56
Total (A) 9,133.13 5,308.02 2,421.56
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Industries Private Limited 28.00 34,53 -
Cello International Private Limited - 302.65 400.89
Cello Marketing - - 88.29
Cello Plast - - 134.21
Unomax Stationery Private Limited 11.90 - -
Unomax Pens & Stationery Private Limited - = 75.48
Total (B) 39.90 337.18 698.87
TOTAL (A+B) 9,173.03 5,645.20 3,120.43
Payables
I|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Home Products 36.97 36.01 35.32
Cello Household Appliance Private Limited 5.44 18.36 -
Cello Industries - - 51.06
Cello Houseware Private Limited - 217 -
Cello Plastic Industrial Works - 39.74 24.68
Unomax Sales & Marketing Private Limited 61.49 * *
Unomax Pens & Stationery Private Limited - 2.62 -
Vardhaman Realtors 3.02 2.16 1.38
Wim Plast Limited 333 23 10.27
Cello Houseware ; - - 12.44
Total 110.25 103.38 135.14
Loans Payable
I|Key managerial personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod 737.30 2,520.00 -
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod 6,952.00 7,304.00 &
Total 7,689.30 9,824.00 -
I1|Relatives of key managerial personnel
Babita Pankaj Rathod 1,676.00 1,676.00 -
Total 1,676.00 1,676.00 -
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Umraoben Family trust 49.55 49.55 49.55
Total 49.55 49.55 49.55
Purchase consideration payable for business combination under commeon control
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Plastotech - 4,735.00
Total (A) - 4,735.00
11|Key Management Personnel
Pradeep Rathod 10,897.84 10,897.84
Pankaj Rathod 10,381.70 10,381.70
Gaurav Rathod 5,448.92 5,448.92
Total (B) 26,728.45 26,728.45
Il|Relatives of key management personnel
Sangeeta Pradeep Rathod 3,192.67 3,192.67
Babita Pankaj Rathod 3,192.67 3,192.67
Total (C) 6,385.34 6,385.34
Total (A+B+C) 33,113.79 37,848.79
Payable to related parties in their capacity as partners of Partneship firms acquired by
the group
1|Key Management Personnel
Pradeep Rathod - 1.3% 1.12
Pankaj Rathod = 2.24 2.24
Gaurav Rathod & 1.96 1.96
Total (A) - 5.32 5.32
11|Relatives of key management personnel
Sangeeta Pradeep Rathod - 0.56 0.56
Babita Pankaj Rathod 4 0.84 0.84
Ruchi Gaurav Rathod - 0.28 0.28
Total (B) - 1.68 1.68
- 7.00 | 7.00

in the remuneration of those directors.

t pertaining to the directors are not ascertainable and therefore not included
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39 Financial instruments and risk management

39.1 Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt offset by cash and bank balances and total equity

Sort term debts

6,037.47 |

9,414.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (965.37) (99.25) (511.64)
Net debt 8,449.48 11,450.30 6,425.84
Total equity 11,204.81 5,213.60 326.93
Net debt to equity ratio 0.75 2.20 19.66
Debt to equity ratio 0.84 2.22 21.22

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022.

39.2 Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Trade receivable 9,190.17 5,645.34 3,155.58
(b) Cash and cash equivalent 965.37 99.25 511.64
(c) Other bank balances - - 15.12
(d) Loans 9.87 22.36 35.72
(e) Other financial assets 81.20 80.68 56.10
Total financial assets 10,246.61 5,847.63 3,774.16
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Borrowings 9,414.85 11,549.55 6,937.47
(b) Trade payables 1,790.21 1,856.15 1,824.24
(c) Other financial liabilities 0.03 0.03 4,735.03
Total financial liabilities 11,205.09 13,405.73 13,496.74

39.3 Financial risk management objectives

(i)

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and
support the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets comprise cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that derive
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management team oversees the
management of these risks. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
mainly comprises interest risk, currency risk, and product price risk.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.




(a) Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s bank overdraft obligations with floating interest
rates.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings taken at

floating rates. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as
follows:

ct pr e re - Bew el
0.50% increase in Basis Point (%)
0.50% decrease in Basis Point (%)

(b) Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities denominated in foreign
currency and thus the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to trade payables and receivables.
The year end unhedged foreign currency exposures are given below:

(a). Advances: (to vendors)

In USD 3.34 3.24 1.25
In EURO - 115 -

In CNY - - 0.78
Equivalent in X Lakhs 276.14 344.51 101.82

(b). Trade payables:

In USD 0.32 - -
Equivalent in X Lakhs 26.26 - -
Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company'’s profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is as follows:

Impact on Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year

(a). Advances: (to vendors)
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) 137 1.23
0.50% decrease (%) (1.37) (1.23)

EURO currency:
0.50% increase (%) - 0.49
0.50% decrease (%) - (0.49)

(b). Trade payables:
1USD currency:

0.50% increase (%). (0.13) -
0.50% decrease (%) 0.13 -




(c) Product price risk
In a potentially inflationary economy, the Company expects periodical price increases across its product lines. Product price increases which are not in line
with the levels of customers’ discretionary spends, may affect the business/ sales volumes. In such a scenario, the risk is managed by offering judicious
product discounts to customers to sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its vendors for purchase price rebates such that the rebates
substantially absorb the product discounts offered to the customers. This helps the Company to protect itself from significant product margin losses. This
mechanism also works in case of a downturn in the retail sector, although overall volumes would get affected.

(ii). Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

(a) Trade receivables
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficient credit rating. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course
of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company has
applied a simplified approach under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables. Refer
note 13 for expected credit loss on trade receivable.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed
by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance
Committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to
make payments.

(iii). Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Cash flow from operating activities
provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient
cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs.

Liquidity risk table

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on con

ual undiscounted payments.

March 31, 2023

Borrowings 9,414.85 - 9,414.85
Trade payables 1,790.21 E 1,790.21
Other financial liabilities - 0.03 0.03
Total 11,205.06 0.03 11,205.09
March 31, 2022

Borrowings 11,549.55 - 11,549.55
Trade payables 1,856.15 - 1,856.15
Other Financial Liabilities - 0.03 0.03
Total 13,405.70 0.03 13,405.73
April 1, 2021

Borrowings 6,937.47 - 6,937.47
Trade payables 1,824.24 - 1,824.24
Other Financial Liabilities ~ 4,735.00 0.03 4,735.03
Total 13,496.71 0.03 13,496.74

The above table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The
amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

40 Fair Value Measurement

40.1 Fair value of the financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The Company has not measure any financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

40.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:
The management believes the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost approximate their fair values.
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41 Business combination
Pursuant to a business transfer agreement dated July 01, 2021, entered into between the Company and one of its related parties, Cello

Plastotech (partnership firm), Cello Plastotech has transferred to the Company, on a slump sale basis and as a going concern, its entire
business, barring certain assets & liabilities, for a cash consideration of % 47.35 crores. The assets and liabilities have been transferred at their
book values as on July 01, 2021.

Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) and all of its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the "Group"), including
the Company are required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.

Upto the period ended March 31, 2022, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP,
which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The date of transition to Ind AS for the Group is
April 01, 2021.

Pursuant to the requirements under Appendix C of Ind AS 110, the financial information related to the Company, including the financial
information of the business transferred by the transferor to the Company in slump sale was restated from the earliest period presented in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The resultant impact of first time adoption of Ind AS by the Group, more specifically the business transferred by the transferor to the
Company in slump sale, has been carried forward to the books of the Company. The reconciliation of adjustments made to total equity and
profit has been explained in note 44.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and capital reserve arising on business combination under common control

Asset

Non-current assets

a) Property, plant and equipment 1,123.91
b) Capital work-in-progress 35.43
c) Intangible assets 3.
d) Financial assets 46.36
e) Deferred tax assets (net) 4.43
Total non-current assets 1,213.84
Current assets

a) Inventories 2,417.41
b) Trade receivable 2,023.98
c) Cash and cash equivalents ; 137.47
d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.54
€) Loans 25.01
f) Other financial assets 0.20
g) Other Current Assets 223.99
Total current assets 4,828.60
Total assets 6,042.44
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

a) Gratuity 103.77
Total non-current liabilities 103.77

Current liabilities

a) Borrowings 49.55
b) Trade payable 1,095.03
c) Gratuity 32.76
d) Other Current Liabilities 39.49
Total current liabilities 1,216.83
Total liabilities 1,320.60
Net assets transferred 4,721.83
Purchase consideration payable in Cash ey (4,735.00)
Capital Reserve as on April 1, 2021 ;'3?;\ (13.17)
\ )
Add : Diffrences on account of Net assets not tranferred including cas hﬂe} tions (for the
period April 1, 2021 to June 30, 2021) =/ (203.50)

Capital Reserve as on June 30, 2021 (216.67)
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42 Ratio analysis and its elements

Where any one or both the components of ratios are extracted from Statement of Profit and Loss, the ratios are provided for the year ended
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. However, where both the components of ratio are extracted from the Balance sheet, the ratios are

provided for all the three periods (i.e., as at March 31, 2023, as at March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021).

a) Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Current assets

18,945.90 T15,249.42| 10,873.02 |
Current liabilities 11,595.39 13,652.84 13,676.80
Ratio (In times) 1.63 1.12 0.79
% Change from previous year 45.54% 41.77% -
Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio has increased from 0.79 as on April 1, 2021 to 1.12 as on March 31, 2022 to 1.63 as on March 31, 2023 mainly on account of increase
in inventories and debtors due to improvement in the sales as a result of improvement in market condition after pandemic, as company started

full production activity.

b)

6,812.49
8,209.20

2,770.26

0.83

-58.14%

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.

Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio decreases from 1.98 during the year ended March 31, 2022 to 0.83 during the year ended March 31, 2023 mainly due to increase in

average equity on account of profits earned in year ended March 31, 2022 and 2023.

c) Inventory turnover ratio = cost of gs sold dvlded by average nventory

Cost of goods sold 19,585.9. 14,619.16

Average inventory 8,642.18 | - 7,961.07

Ratio (in times) 2.27 1.84
% Change from previous year 23.42%

d

Trade receivables turnover ratio = credit sales divided by av

edit e‘

Average trade receivables # 7,417.75 4,400.46
Ratio (in times) 4.70 6.22
% Change from previous year -24.54%

34,834.82

31 J
27,386.16

* Credit sales includes sale of products, services and scrap sales.

# Average Trade receivables represents the average of opening and closing trade receivables.

) Trade payables turnover ratio = credit purchases divided by avera ge trade

Credit purchases

Ratio (in times)

ables

16,706.76
Average trade payables 1,601.97 1,690.20
11.77 9.88

% Change from previous year 16.04%

# Trade payable included payables for purchases and excludes employee payables. Average Trade payable represents the
average of opening and closing trade payables.

31, 202,

34,834.82 27,386.16
Current assets (B) 18,945.90 15,249.42
Current liabilities (C) 11,595.39 13,652.84
Net working capital (D =B -C) 7,350.51 1,596.58
Ratio (in times) (E= A / D) 4.74 17.15
% Change from previous year -72.37%

Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio decreases from 17.15 during the year ended March 31, 2022 to 4.74 during the year ended March 31, 2023 mainly due to increase in

sales volume and improvement in working capital management,



g) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by sales

Net profit after tax .7

Sales* 34,834.82 27,386.16
Ratio 19.56% 20.05%
% Change from previous year -2.48%
* Sales includes sale of products, services and scrap sales.

h) Return on Ca

it s

loyed (p = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by average Capital Employe

Profit before tax (A) ' ‘ - ' 9,134.91 " 7,196.79 |

Finance cost (B) 1.18 6.44
EBIT (C) = (A+B) 9,136.09 7,203.23
Tangible net worth (D)* 11,189.85 5,138.52
Total debt (E) 9,414.85 11,549.55
Deferred tax liability (F) - -
Capital employed (G)=(D+E+F) 20,604.70 16,688.07
Ratio (In %) - 44.34% 43.16%
% Change from previous year 2.7@1

*Tangible net worth =Net worth (Shareholder's fund) less Intangible assets less Deferred Tax Assets

i) Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equi

Total debts 9,414.85 A

Shareholder's funds 11,204.81 5,213.60 326.93
Ratio (In times) 0.84 2.22 21.22
% Change from previous year -62.07% -89.56%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio decreases from 21.22 as at April 1, 2021 to 2.22 as at March 31, 2022 and to 0.84 as at March 31, 2023 mainly due to reduction in
borrowing through internal accrual & increase in shareholder's fund.

i)

Debt service coverage ratio=

Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and princi

Profit after tax (A)

6,812.49 5,491.75

Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

- Depreciation and amortisation (B) 782.85 815.35
- Finance cost (C) 1.18 6.44
- (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (D) (1.00) (2.08)
Total non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (E= B+C+D) 783.03 819.71
Total non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (F = D (1-Tax 585.95 613.40
rate))

Earnings available for debt services (G = A+F) 7,398.44 6,105.15
Debt service

Principal Repayments (H) _2,134.70 7,000.00
Total interest and principal repayments (J = H+1) 2,134.70 7,000.00
Ratio (In times) (K = G/ J) 3.47 0.87
|% Change from previous year 297.38%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio increases from 0.87 during the year ended March 31, 2023 to 3.46 during the year ended March 31, 2023 mainly due to reduction in
Interest & borrowings due to internal accrual & increase in shareholder's fund.

k) Return on Investment* = Profit divided by cost of investment: NA
This ratio is not applicable since the Company does not have any projects/investments other than current operations




43 Additional regulatory information as required by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

-

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property.

. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during each reporting period.

. There were no Scheme of Arrangements entered by the Company during each reporting period, which required approval from the Competent Authority in

terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

- Transactions with Companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956:

The Company had transactions with the following struck-off companies, in respect of which the outstanding balances at the end of each repoting period were
Nil:
a) Rajasthan Goods Movers Private Limited

. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or '

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

. The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Restriction on

number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

. The Company does not have any Loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that

are
(a) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifving anv terms or period of repavment

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
The Company has not entered into any transactions requiring disclosures in respect of details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.




Cello Household Products Private Limited

CIN: U25209MH2021PTC355178

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

44 First-time adoption of Ind-AS

44.1 Remnclilatlon of total equi

as at March 31, _ 2022 n :

Total equity (shareholder's funds) under previous GAAP

34585

5.323.37
Ind AS Adjustments:
Gratuity impact as per valuation a (43.51) (28.74)
Asset & liabilities not transferred as part of business combination under d. (560.02) .
common control
Adjustments for equity pertaining to erstwhile partners in business d. 617.87 -
combination under common control
Creation of capital reserve on account of business combination under 41 (216.67) (13.17)
common control
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment b. 4.40 -
Deferred tax impact (A 88.15 22.97
Total adjustment to equity (109.77) (18.93)
Total equity under Ind AS 5,213.60 3!6.93

44.2 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP

Ind AS Adjustments:

Gratuity impact as per valuation

Adjustments for income pertaining to erstwhile partners in business
combination under common control
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Deferred tax impact

Total adjustment to profit or loss

Profit after tax under Ind AS

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Deferred tax impact

Total comprehensive income under Ind AS

5,989.56

(4.88)
(560.02)

4.40
62.69

(497.81)
5,491.75

(9.90)
2.49

Note: Under previous GAAP, total comprehensive income was not reported. Therefore, the above reconciliation starts with profit under
the previous GAAP.

Net cash geneted from / (used in operating activities

i (3,223.33) 4,602.54 1,278.21
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 44.4 (1,713.23) (4,315.56) (6,028.79)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 44.4 4,661.63 (424.44) 4,237.19
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (274.93) (137.46) (412.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of year/period 374.18 137.46 511.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of year/period 99,25 (0.00) 99.25

5,484.34




44.4 Notes to first-time adoption:

a. Actuarial gains and losses
The impact is on account of measurement of employee benefits obligations as per Ind AS 19. Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and
losses were recognised in profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses forming part of remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability / asset, are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under Ind AS instead of profit or loss.

b. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
The depreciation on property, plant and equipment acquired on account of slump sale has been computed in accordance with
Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 16, on the deemed cost (i.e. carrying value as per previous GAAP) from the date of transition to Ind AS.

c. Deferred tax impact
The previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between
taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using balance sheet
approach which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax
base. Various transitional adjustments has resulted in recognition of temporary differences.

d. Adjustments on account of business combination under common control
Adjustments for equity pertaining to erstwhile partners in business combinations under common control represents equity and
accumulated profits attributable to erstwhile partners as well as certain assets and liabilities which were not transferred to the Company
on slump sale. However, the same were accounted / disclosed while restating the prior period information as required under Appendix C
of Ind AS 103.
Adjustments for income pertaining to erstwhile partners in business combinations under common control represents income or
expenses related to certain assets or liabilities which were not transferred to the Company on slump sale.

45 No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

46 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s
classification/disclosure.

47 The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on July 31, 2023

In terms of our report attached of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Cello Household Products Private Limited
(FRN- 104202W)
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